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July 13, 2022 
 

Via U.S. Mail and Electronic Mail to cela@fec.gov 
Federal Election Commission 
Office of Complaints Examination  
and Legal Administration 
Attn: Christal Dennis, Paralegal 
1050 First Street, NE 
Washington, DC 20436 
 

Re: Teeter Jay, LLC, Kimberly A. Skaggs, Joseph R. Skaggs, Terryl Jay Skaggs (Matter 
Number MUR 7981) 

 
Dear Ms. Dennis: 
 

We represent respondents Teeter Jay, LLC, Kimberly A. Skaggs, Joseph R. Skaggs, and Terryl J. 
Skaggs (“our Clients”) in the above-captioned matter. We have reviewed the Campaign Legal Center’s 
complaint filed on April 20, 2022 (the “Complaint”) alleging Teeter Jay, LLC and “one or more unknown 
person(s)–who may be Kimberly Skaggs, Joseph Skaggs, Terryl Skaggs, and/or other persons” violated 
the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act” or “FECA”), and Federal Election 
Commission (the Commission” or “FEC”) regulations in connection with a contribution from Teeter Jay, 
LLC to Freedom Forward Fund, an independent expenditure-only political committee. Specifically, the 
Complaint alleges “unknown true contributors provided funds to Teeter Jay [LLC] for the specific purpose 
of contributing without “disclosing the true contributors’ identities.”  

 
The Complaint claims without any factual basis that two contributions to the Freedom Forward 

Fund on May 3 and May 17, 2021, totaling $100,000, from Teeter Jay, LLC, reported to the Commission 
on July 12, 2021, were unauthorized contributions from an unknown entity in violation of FECA.   

 
CLC’s allegations have no merit. Contrary to the complaint’s assertion that undisclosed persons 

contributed money through a shell corporation created for the purpose of concealing the donor’s identity 
as the source of the contributions, Kimberly A. Skaggs (“Ms. Skaggs”) created Teeter Jay, LLC in 2019, 
with her son Terryl J. Skaggs, in order to build a horse showing arena; the LLC’s creation pre-dated the 
making of the contributions by two years, and the LLC was created and operated for purposes other than 
to influence an election by making contributions for the sole purpose of hiding political contributions by 
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masking the donor’s identity.1 Indeed, as explained further in detail below, Ms. Skaggs, the managing 
partner and partnership representative for Teeter Jay, LLC, previously made political contributions in her 
own name to the candidate supported by the Super PAC at issue here and would have had no intention to 
conceal her identity as the donor of the funds at issue.2  

 
The Complaint relies mysteriously, and almost exclusively, on the fact that Teeter Jay, LLC has 

no website or social media, to make its argument that Teeter Jay LLC was not the true source of the 
contributions to the Freedom Forward Fund. Mere speculation and a lack of a Facebook account does not 
merit the Commission’s time or resources. In fact, as detailed below, the LLC at issue was not created and 
operated for the sole purpose of making political contributions. Moreover, the LLC was not a single 
member LLC at the time of the contribution, contrary to the complaint’s contentions. The actual facts are 
simple. In 2021, Ms. Skaggs contributed personally to Mark Moores, and having reached the maximum 
federal limit, wanted to lawfully donate to a super PAC, Freedom Forward Fund. She used her company, 
Teeter Jay LLC, to do so.  At no point did Ms. Skaggs intend to conceal the source of the funds contributed.  

 
For the foregoing reasons, the Commission should find no reason to believe that Respondents 

violated the Act or Commission regulations and should promptly dismiss this matter.3  
 

FACTUAL BACKGROUND 
 

In 2019, Ms. Skaggs and her son Terryl J. Skaggs desired to build a horse and livestock showing 
arena. They created an LLC named Teeter Jay, LLC for the stated purpose of “PERFORMANCE & 
ARENA, Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation, Promoters of Performing Arts, Sports and Similar Events 
with Facilities,” contrary to the Complaints allegations at ¶¶ 4, 31.4 Teeter Jay, LLC is an S Corp 
partnership, managed by Ms. Skaggs and Terryl J. Skaggs.5 Ms. Skaggs is the manager and designated 
partnership representative.6 

 
50 State DMV, LLC is an LLC that at the time was solely owned and operated by Ms. Skaggs.7 

50 States DMV, LLC is Ms. Skaggs’ main business account, which provides the cash flow for Teeter Jay, 
LLC. 

 
On July 22, 2019, Teeter Jay, LLC, placed an order to begin construction of the horse and livestock 

showing arena.8 It purchased rod gates, heavy duty panels, roping chutes, and chute extensions, for a total 

 
1 Exhibit A. Teeter Jay, LLC Operating Agreement, as amended January 20, 2021, at 4-5. 
2 See MUR 6930 (Nov. 19, 2015). 
3 At the very least, and in the alternative, the Commission should dismiss this matter as an exercise of prosecutorial 

discretion. See MUR 6930 (Apr. 1, 2016) (Dismissed by a vote of 6-0 under similar circumstances). 
4 Exhibit B. Teeter Jay Articles of Organization, August 20, 2019. 
5 Exhibit A. at § 7.1. 
6 Id. at § 7.4(a). 
7 Exhibit C. 50 State DMV, LLC S Corp Election form 2553, August 10, 2018 (showing Ms. Skaggs as sole member). 
8 See Exhibit D. Shipment Order from Red River Arenas, dated July 22, 2019. 
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of $31,945.00.9 On July 25, 2019, $31,945.00 was drawn from 50 State DMV, LLC’s account to finance 
these purchases, as it provides the cash flow for Teeter Jay, LLC.10 Teeter Jay, LLC then contracted for 
utilities on the property, with Moongate Water Co. providing water. 11 In October, Teeter Jay, LLC paid 
its first electricity bill and entered into a contract with the El Paso Electric Company as the electricity 
provider.12 

 
In the meantime, Ms. Skaggs, the Executive Director of the New Mexico Republican Party, turned 

her interest to the 2021 1st congressional district special election. The special election was triggered after 
Congresswoman Debra Haaland left office to serve as Secretary of the Interior.13 Ms. Skaggs and her 
husband Joseph R. Skaggs each contributed $2,900 to Mark Moores for Congress on April 3, 2021.14 Ms. 
Skaggs, having already contributed the maximum amount allowable under the Act, still desired to support 
Mark Moores and was correctly informed that there was no contribution limit when giving to an 
independent expenditure-only political committee. 

 
Ms. Skaggs reached out to political consultant Brian Seitchik, who directed her to the Freedom 

Forward Fund, an independent expenditure-only political committee. Ms. Skaggs then made two 
contributions to Freedom Forward Fund through Teeter Jay LLC, who then reported the contributions to 
the Commission.15 At no point did Ms. Skaggs intend to conceal her status as the source of the funds. In 
fact, she’d previously given publicly to the same campaign—she chose Teeter Jay LLC for convenience 
as she controlled the entity.  

 
RESPONSE 

 
The Complaint’s main allegations are that 1) Teeter Jay, LLC “infus[ed] funds provided to it for 

[the] specific purpose” of concealing the true contributors’ identities thus violating 52 U.S.C. § 30122; 
and 2) Teeter Jay, LLC failed to provide accurate and complete attribution information to the Freedom 
Forward Fund at the time of the contributions in violation of 11 C.F.R. § 110.1(g)(4). Neither allegation 
has merit. At the very least, the Commission should use its prosecutorial discretion to dismiss this 
Complaint. 

 
I. The Complaint contains mere speculation and must be dismissed. 

 
Under the Act and Commission regulations, a complaint must satisfy specific requirements in 

order to be deemed legally sufficient. Specifically, a complaint must contain a “clear and concise recitation 

 
9 Id. 
10 Exhibit E. 50 Bank DMV, LLC Bank Statement – July 2019, at page 13. 
11 See Exhibit F. Moongate agreement, dated Aug. 30, 2019.  
12 See Exhibit G. Receipt for first bill paid October 7, 2019, and Exhibit H. El Paso agreement, dated Oct. 31, 2019. 
13 https://www.lcsun-news.com/story/news/2021/03/16/new-mexico-congressional-race-succeed-deb-haaland-takes-

shape/4717791001/. 
14 See Exhibit I. Schedule A (FEC Form 3), transaction IDs SA11AO.8242, SA11AO.8240. 
15 See Exhibit J. Schedule A Itemized receipts, filed July 12, 2021. 
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of the facts which describe a violation of statute or regulation over which the Commission has 
jurisdiction.” 11 C.F.R. § l1l.4(d)(3). Indeed, absent such a “clear and concise recitation of the facts,” a 
complaint is legally deficient and must be dismissed.16 

 
Due process and fundamental fairness dictate that the burden must not shift to a respondent merely 

because a complaint is filed with the Commission.17 This is especially the case where the complaint does 
not contain sufficient information to establish an alleged violation or provide the respondent with 
sufficient information to meaningfully respond to the allegations.18 

 
The actual facts in the Complaint are sparse, as it relies solely on three allegations: 1) In 2019 a 

company was formed with an address that overlapped with one of the companies’ members;19 2) that 
company “has no publicly available information . . . [including no] Facebook, Instagram, or Twitter;”20 
and 3) that company made a contribution in 2021.21 

 
As this Commission has repeatedly stated, speculation alone is insufficient to warrant an 

investigation.22 The “standard[s do] not permit a complainant to present mere allegations that the Act has 
been violated and request that the Commission undertake an investigation to determine whether there are 
facts to support the charges . . . . The Commission must have more . . . [to] commence an investigation.”23 

 
As in MUR 4960, where the Commission held that purely speculative charges, “especially when 

accompanied by a direct refutation, do not form an adequate basis to find reason to believe that a violation” 
has occurred, so too here. The Complaint speculates that because Teeter Jay, LLC only has one member 
(which is untrue, per the Amended Articles of Organization, which predated the contributions at issue), 
and no social media (which is irrelevant), the contribution must have come from a non-Teeter Jay, LLC 
source set up specifically to evade reporting requirements. Here, Teeter Jay, LLC was set up for a 
commercial purpose entirely separate and pre-dating political giving and not established as a straw donor 
corporate entity. The source of the contribution is the manager and partnership representative of Teeter 
Jay, LLC, Ms. Skaggs. 

 
16 See Factual and Legal  Analysis, MUR 6554 at 5 (Feb. 5, 2014)("The Complaint and other available information in the 

record do not provide information sufficient to establish [a violation]."). 
17 See Statement of Reasons of Chairman Darryl R. Wold and Commissioners David M. Mason and Scott E. Thomas MUR 

4850 at 2 (Jul. 20, 2000) (rejecting the Office of General Counsel’s recommendation and holding that “[a] mere conclusory 
allegation without any supporting evidence does not shift the burden of proof to the respondents.”). 

18 See Statement of Reasons of Commissioners David M. Mason, Karl J. Sandstrom, Bradley A. Smith and Scott E. Thomas 
MUR 4960 at 2 (Dec. 21, 2000) (“Unwarranted legal conclusions from asserted facts . . . will not be accepted as true.”). 

19 Id. at ¶¶ 8, 11-12. 
20 Id. at ¶ 9. 
21 Id. at ¶ 16. 
22 Statement of Reasons MUR 4960 (Dec. 21, 2000), at 3 (“Such purely speculative charges, especially when accompanied 

by a direct refutation, do not form an adequate basis to find reason to believe that a violation of the FECA has occurred.”); 
First General Counsel’s Report MUR 5467 (Jul. 23, 2004) at 5 same). 

23 Statement of Reasons of Vice Chairman Matthew S. Petersen and Commissioners Caroline C. Hunter and Donald F. 
McGahn MUR 6056 (Jun. 1, 2009) at 6. 

MUR798100057



 

 
Because Complaint fails to allege any facts that represent a violation, the Commission should 

dismiss this action as speculative. 
 

II. The Complaint contains several erroneous and false facts. 
 
The Complaint mistakes several key facts and then uses these factual errors to speculate.  
 
First, Teeter Jay, LLC is not a single member LLC as alleged.24 Instead, it is a partnership between 

Ms. Skaggs and her son Terryl J. Skaggs, of which Ms. Skaggs is the manager and partnership 
representative.25 

 
Second, the funds provided to Teeter Jay, LLC, up until 2021, were for the specific purpose of 

creating a horse showing arena, and not for the “specific purpose of having it contribute . . . without 
disclosing the true contributors’ identities.”26 

 
This is evidenced by the July 22, 2019, sales order from Red River Arenas.27 Teeter Jay, LLC was 

formed for a commercial purpose and operated as a commercial entity by making purchases and entering 
into utility contracts shortly after its creation. 

 
III. Respondents did not violate 11 C.F.R. § 110.1(g)(4) because there was no clear obligation to 

provide attribution information for LLC contributions at the relevant time. 
 
Teeter Jay, LLC provided its contribution to the Freedom Forward Fund on May 3 and May 17, 

2021. At the time, the Commission had not come to a consensus, and Commissioners’ Statements of 
Reason had provided limited (and at times conflicting) guidance, on the particular legal standards for 
attribution, reporting, or contributions of LLCs contributing to super PACs.28  

 
In fact, it was not until nearly a year later, on April 15, 2022, that the Commission acknowledged 

this “lack of clarity.” Indeed, before April 15, 2022, “the Commission did not agree whether” there was 
sufficient notice about the reporting rules for LLC’s to IEOPCs.29 The Commission stated that as of April 
15, 2022 “there is no longer a lack of clarity.”30 

 

 
24 Complaint at ¶¶ 3, 8. 
25 Exhibit A. at § 7.4(a). 
26 Complaint at ¶ 4. 
27 Exhibit D. 
28 See MURs 6485, 6487 & 6488, 6930; 6969, 7031, 7034; and 6968, 6995, 7014, 7019, 7090. 
29 State of Reasons of Chairman Allen Dickerson, Vice Chair Steven T. Walther, Commissioner Shana M. Broussard and 

Commissioner Ellen L. Weinraub, MUR 7454 at 2 (Apr. 15, 2022). 
30 Id. 
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The CLC’s attempts to imply this area of law as settled in 2018 and merely “reaffirmed” in 2022 
is erroneous on its face and belied by the Commission’s own words and admissions.31 The Commission 
expressly acknowledged there was a “lack of clarity” and no consensus, and that clarification did not come 
until April 15, 2022. 32 This is hardly “reaffirming” a principle of settled law, and such attempt to paint it 
as such is disingenuous. 

 
Not only has the Commission acknowledged this “lack of clarity,” but so too has counsel for the 

Complainant, in his prior capacity as Commission counsel.33 While supporting the dismissal of a factually 
similar case (discussed infra at IV.b), Mr. Ghosh specifically acknowledged that the “LLC attribution 
regulations were implemented to address a concern regarding the use of LLCs to circumvent contribution 
limits” and not whether and to which source the contribution should be attributed.34  

 
Respondent Teeter Jay, LLC’s contributions were made a full year before consensus was reached 

by the Commission as to contributions by LLCs. Thus, Respondents did not violate 11 C.F.R. § 
110.1(g)(4) as it was understood and interpreted at the time. At the very least, the Commission should 
exercise its prosecutorial discretion and dismiss this Complaint, due to its own statement that there was a 
“lack of clarity” at the time of the contribution.35 

 
IV. The facts, timing, and circumstances of the contributions show no intent to violate the law. 

 
a. There is a presumption of lawfulness. 
 
Contributions by an LLC are presumed lawful unless proven otherwise, which the Complainant 

has not and cannot do. The Commission “may not merely presume that contributions from [LLCs] are 
actually contributions in the name of another.”36 Such contributions are “presumed lawful unless specific 
evidence demonstrates otherwise. Absent such evidence, the Commission will have no reasons to believe” 
a violation has occurred.37 

 
Where direct evidence of malintent is lacking, as it is here, “the Commission will look at whether, 

for instance, [the company] was created and operated for the sole purpose of making political 

 
31 Complaint at ¶ 29 (citing Statement of Reasons of Chair Caroline Hunter and Commissioner Matthew Petersen at 2, 5, 

MURs 6969, 7031, and 7034 (Sept. 13, 2018). 
32 State of Reasons of Chairman Allen Dickerson, Vice Chair Steven T. Walther, Commissioner Shana M. Broussard and 

Commissioner Ellen L. Weinraub, MUR 7454 at 2 (Apr. 15, 2022). 
33 See Complaint at page 18. 
34 First General Counsel’s Report at 11, MUR 6930 (Nov. 19, 2015). 
35 Id. 
36 Statement of Reasons of Chairman Matthew S. Petersen and Commissioners Caroline C. Hunter and Lee E. Goodman, 

MURs 6485, 6487 & 6488, 6711, 6930 at 12 (Apr. 1, 2016). 
37 Statement of Reasons of Chair Caroline C. Hunter and Commissioner Matthew S. Petersen, MURs 6968, 6995, 7014, 

7017, 7019 , 7090 at 10 (Jul. 2, 2018).  
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contributions.38” The purpose is to determine whether the LLC was “formed merely as [a] shell[] to 
transmit contributions.”39 

 
Here, the company was not created and operated for the sole purpose of making political 

contributions.40 It existed long before the special election was called and conducted normal commercial 
activity like ordering construction supplies41 and setting up utilities.42 Thus, it was not formed merely as 
a shell corporation to make political contributions. 

 
The timing of the creation of Teeter Jay, LLC also disproves the complainant’s theory that 

“unidentified persons . . . created” Teeter Jay, LLC in order to violate 52 U.S.C. § 30122 and contribute 
to a special election “without disclosing their identities as the true contributor(s).”43 Teeter Jay, LLC was 
created in 201944 and the congressional vacancy did not arise until more than one year later, on Dec. 17, 
2020.45 This timing shows Teeter Jay, LLC was created for the purpose of constructing a horse showing 
arena46 and not as an attempt to conceal the identities of donors for a future election, as the Complainant 
alleges.47 

 
In prior cases, the Commission has looked to “timing and circumstances” before to find evidence 

that there was no intent to violate the law, specifically citing a “significantly longer” time between the 
formation of a corporation and donation, there “two months apart.”48 Here, the time between the formation 
of Teeter Jay, LLC and the contribution is almost two years apart. If two months is such “an extended 
period of time between” formation and contribution such that it “is not consistent with a scheme to illegally 
convey another’s contribution,” surely two years is even more so.49 

 
 
 
 

 
38 Statement of Reasons of Chairman Matthew S. Petersen and Commissioners Caroline C. Hunter and Lee E. Goodman, 

MURs 6485, 6487 & 6488, 6711, 6930 at 12 (Apr. 1, 2016). 
39 Statement of Reasons of Chair Caroline C. Hunter and Commissioner Matthew S. Petersen, MURs 6968, 6995, 7014, 

7017, 7019, 7090 at 13 (Jul. 2, 2018). 
40 See First General Counsel’s Report at p, MUR 6930 (Nov. 19, 2015) (Mr. Ghosh noting that because a business was 

“created and operated . . . for purposes other than to influence an election by making contributions” the complaint should 
be dismissed.”) 

41 Exhibit D. 
42 Exhibits F. and H. 
43 Complaint at ¶¶ 39-40. 
44 Exhibit B. 
45 https://www.nytimes.com/2020/12/17/climate/deb-haaland-interior-department-native-american.html 
46 Exhibit B. at 2 (“Purpose: PERFORMANCE & ARENA”). 
47 Complaint at ¶¶ 39-40. 
48 See Statement of Reasons of Vice Chair Allen Dickerson and Commissioners Sean J. Cooksey and James “Trey” Trainor, 

III, MUR 7754 at 6 (Dec. 1, 2021). 
49 Id. 
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b. These circumstances are strikingly similar to MUR 6930, and the Commission should 
follow its precedent. 

 
In MUR 6930, Prakazrel “Pras” Michel (“Michel”) personally contributed to an independent-

expenditure only political committee, and then used his company SPM 2012 Holdings LLC (“SPM”) to 
make an additional two contributions. Michel attributed the two later contributions as coming from SPM. 
A complaint was filed, alleging that Michel violated FECA by making two contributions in the name of 
SPM, his single member LLC, and that SPM knowingly allowed its name to be used for those 
contributions.50  

 
In reply, Michel attested “that he established SPM for purely commercial purposes, not to engage 

in political activity; [he used] SPM as a platform to collect and hold the income from his businesses and 
investments.”51 Michel claimed SPM was created three months prior to the contributions for a commercial 
purpose, and that SPM’s only income derives from Michel’s business and investments.52 

 
Michel also argued that he “had no reason or intent to conceal his company was the source,” and 

his “sole consideration in directing SPM to make contributions was cashflow and business convenience.”53  
 
The Commission’s Office of General Counsel issued a dismissal letter (signed by Mr. Ghosh, 

counsel for the Complainant in this case) concluding that Michel “did not seek to circumvent the Act’s 
disclosure requirements.”54 The Commission concluded that Michel did not intend to conceal his identity 
as the source of the contributions because SPM was “created and operated . . . for purposes other than to 
influence an election by making contributions,” “Michel made two personal contributions . . . before 
directing SPM to make contributions as its sole member,” and Michel “readily acknowledged his 
ownership of SPM and explained that he directed his LLC to make contributions not to mask his identity, 
but as a matter of convenience . . . [and] cash flow.”55  

 
The General Counsel’s office recommended, therefore, that complaint be dismissed because the 

“public record” was corrected, which “obviate[ed] the need for the Commission to expend further 
resources.”56 

 
Here, the facts are nearly identical. Ms. Skaggs created Teeter Jay, LLC with her son for a 

commercial purpose (showing horse and livestock), not to engage in political activity by contributing to 
influencing an election.57 And, like the business at issue in MUR 6930, Teeter Jay, LLC was created well 

 
50 See generally First General Counsel’s Report at 3, MUR 6930 (Nov. 19, 2015) 
51 Id. at 3. 
52 Id. at 5. 
53 Id. 
54 Id. at 5, 9. 
55 Id. at 9 (emphasis in original). 
56 Id. at 11. 
57 Exhibit B. 
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before (almost two years before) the contributions at issue (three months separated the business and 
contributions in MUR 6930).58 

 
Here, Ms. Skaggs had no reason or intent to conceal her identity as the source of the contribution. 

She made a personal contribution before directing Teeter Jay, LLC to make the contributions, and she 
readily acknowledges herself as the source. She directed Teeter Jay, LLC to make the contributions not to 
mask her identity, but as a matter of convenience and cash flow. She has also now obviated the need for 
the Commission to expend further resources in correcting the public record by providing attribution 
information and directing Freedom Forward Fund to update their filings.59 

 
Just as the Commission’s General Counsel’s office decided in MUR 6930, with the 

recommendation of counsel for CLC here, so too should this complaint be dismissed. 
 
c. Respondents’ request to correct the record remedies any violation and the 

Commission should close this matter. 
 
The Commission has previously found as a “factor in favor of [exercising] prosecutorial 

discretion” the fact that “responses to the[] complaints have fleshed out the public record.”60 There, as 
here, “Not only did the responses identify the individuals behind the LLCs, the responses provided the 
information necessary to properly attribute the contributions.”61 Further, prosecutorial discretion has been 
deemed appropriate when the contributor “asked [the super PAC] to update its disclosure reports,” and 
publicly “acknowledged his role as manager and representative [of the LLC].”62 The harm intended to be 
avoided is when the public will “not know the true source of the money” or if “the public will likely never 
know the true source.”63 

 
Here, Ms. Skaggs never sought to hide herself as the true source of the contribution, she merely 

believed (correctly at the time) that she did not need to provide additional attribution information. She 
acknowledges she, as managing partner of Teeter Jay, LLC, is the source of the contributions and has 
provided the information necessary to make proper attributions and has asked the Freedom Forward Fund 
to update their disclosure reports.64 

 

 
58 Id. 
59 See Exhibit K. Letter to Freedom Forward Fund directing them to update FEC filing to attribute contributions to Ms. 

Skaggs, date July 5, 2022. 
60 See Statement of Reasons of Chair Caroline C. Hunter and Commissioner Mathew S. Petersen, MURs 6969, 7031, 7034 

(Sept. 13, 2018) at 7 (citing Campaign Legal Center, 2018 WL 2739920, at *8 (acknowledging “little to no information 
harm was suffered by the public” when the creator of a corporate LLC was ultimately disclosed.)). 

61 Id. 
62 Statement of Reasons of Chair Caroline C. Hunter and Commissioner Matthew S. Petersen, MURs 6968, 6995, 7014, 

7017, 7019, 7090 at 13 (Jul. 2, 2018). 
63 Statement of Reasons of Vice Chair Ellen L. Weintraub, MURs 6968, 6995, 7014, 7017, 7019, 7090 at 1-2 (Jun. 19, 2018). 
64 Exhibit K.  
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Having contributed personally and publicly to Mark Moores’ campaign,65 and being the manager 
and partnership representative of Teeter Jay, LLC,66 Ms. Skaggs has not sought to hide or obfuscate her 
involvement, instead, she has always been willing to acknowledge herself as the source. 

 
In summary, Ms. Skaggs believed she was using her money, from her company, to contribute.67 

She used Teeter Jay, LLC out of convenience. There was no intention to evade disclosure requirements 
by using another person’s name or to hide her involvement. Following the receipt of the Complaint, and 
out of an abundance of caution, she has updated and provided all relevant information to cure any potential 
harm that may have been incurred.   

 
CONCLUSION 

 
For the reasons set forth above, the Commission should find no reason to believe that Teeter Jay, 

LLC, Ms. Skaggs, Joseph R. Skaggs, or Terryl J. Skaggs violated 52 U.S.C. § 30122 with the specific 
intent to hide the source of the contribution. In the alternative, the Commission should dismiss this matter 
in an exercise of prosecutorial discretion.68 

 
Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions.   
 

Respectfully submitted, 

          
Lucinda Luetkemeyer  

 
65 Exhibit I. 
66 Exhibit A. at 4. 
67 Id. 
68 See MURs 6968, 6995, 7014, 7019, 7090; and 7454.  
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Limited Liability Company 

ONLINE ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION 

The undersigned, acting as organizer(s) of a Limited Liability Company pursuant to the New Mexico Limited 
Liability Company Act, adopt the following Articles of Organization:

ARTICLE ONE: The name of the Limited Liability Company is:

TEETER JAY LLC

ARTICLE TWO: The period of duration is: Perpetual 

ARTICLE THREE: 
(1) The name of the initial registered agent at the address is:

(2) The New Mexico street address of the company's initial registered agent is:

Type Address City State Zip Country

Physical 
Address 4421 Elks Dr Las Cruces NM 88007 USA

(Post Office Box is not acceptable. Provide a description of the geographical location if a street address does not exist.)  

(3) The street address of the company's principal place of business, if different from its registered agent's
address is:

Address City State Zip Country

7655 RABBIT RUN RD. Las Cruces NM 88012 USA

(4) The mailing address of the Limited Liability Company is:

Address City State Zip Country

5033 NORTHWIND RD. Las Cruces NM 88005 USA

Email Address: teeterjayllc@gmail.com

Phone: 575-491-1392

First Name Last Name

LAURA LAZARO

325 DON GASPAR, SUITE 300, SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87501 PHONE:(505)827-3600  FAX:(505)827-4387325 DON GASPAR, SUITE 300, SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87501 PHONE:(505)827-3600  FAX:(505)827-4387325 DON GASPAR, SUITE 300, SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87501 PHONE:(505)827-3600  FAX:(505)827-4387325 DON GASPAR, SUITE 300, SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87501 PHONE:(505)827-3600  FAX:(505)827-4387
TOLL FREE:(800)477-3632     www.sos.state.nm.usTOLL FREE:(800)477-3632     www.sos.state.nm.usTOLL FREE:(800)477-3632     www.sos.state.nm.usTOLL FREE:(800)477-3632     www.sos.state.nm.us Page 1 of 3
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ARTICLE FOUR: (Check only if applicable):

 YES Management of the business and affairs of the company is vested in a manager(s). 

Manager Name and address:

Name Physical Address Mailing Address

ARTICLE FIVE: (Check only if applicable):

 YES The Limited Liability Company is a single member Limited Liability Company. 

Member Name and 
address:

Name Physical Address Mailing Address

TERRYL JAY SKAGGS 7655 RABBIT RUN RD., Las Cruces, 
NM 88012 

653 UTAH AVE, SUITE B, Las Cruces, 
NM 88001 

ARTICLE SIX: If these Articles of Organization are not to be effective upon filing with the Secretary of 
State's Office, the effective date is (if an effective date is specified here, it cannot be a date prior to the date the articles are 
received by the Secretary of State's Office.)

Effective Date

08/20/2019

 

Purpose: PERFORMANCE & ARENA

NAICS Code: Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation - 711310

NAICS Sub Code: Promoters of Performing Arts, Sports, and Similar Events with Facilities

Organizer(s) Printed Name(s):

(Typing the First and Last Name of the Organizer(s), is the equivalent of an electronic signature.)

 

 

  

First Name Last Name

LAURA LAZARO

325 DON GASPAR, SUITE 300, SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87501 PHONE:(505)827-3600  FAX:(505)827-4387325 DON GASPAR, SUITE 300, SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87501 PHONE:(505)827-3600  FAX:(505)827-4387325 DON GASPAR, SUITE 300, SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87501 PHONE:(505)827-3600  FAX:(505)827-4387325 DON GASPAR, SUITE 300, SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87501 PHONE:(505)827-3600  FAX:(505)827-4387
TOLL FREE:(800)477-3632     www.sos.state.nm.usTOLL FREE:(800)477-3632     www.sos.state.nm.usTOLL FREE:(800)477-3632     www.sos.state.nm.usTOLL FREE:(800)477-3632     www.sos.state.nm.us Page 2 of 3
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Limited Liability Company 

ONLINE STATEMENT OF ACCEPTANCE OF APPOINTMENT 
BY DESIGNATED INITIAL REGISTERED AGENT 

I,

hereby acknowledge that the undersigned individual accepts the appointment as Initial Registered 
Agent of TEETER JAY LLC the Limited Liability Company which is named in the annexed Articles of 
Organization. 

(Typing the First and Last Name of Initial Registered Agent, is the equivalent of an electronic signature.)

 

LAURA LAZARO

325 DON GASPAR, SUITE 300, SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87501 PHONE:(505)827-3600  FAX:(505)827-4387325 DON GASPAR, SUITE 300, SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87501 PHONE:(505)827-3600  FAX:(505)827-4387325 DON GASPAR, SUITE 300, SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87501 PHONE:(505)827-3600  FAX:(505)827-4387325 DON GASPAR, SUITE 300, SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 87501 PHONE:(505)827-3600  FAX:(505)827-4387
TOLL FREE:(800)477-3632     www.sos.state.nm.usTOLL FREE:(800)477-3632     www.sos.state.nm.usTOLL FREE:(800)477-3632     www.sos.state.nm.usTOLL FREE:(800)477-3632     www.sos.state.nm.us Page 3 of 3
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Sale ~ Shipment Pending
Date 7/22/2019

S.O. No. 6064

Bill To:

TEETER JAY, LLC 
SKAGGS NM 88012

Ship To

KIMBERLY SKAGGS, NM 88012

P.O. No. Rep

LC

Signature:

Total

Subtotal

Sales Tax  (0.0%)

Customer Phone:
Customer Fax:
Customer Alt. Phone:
Customer E-mail: KIM@50STATEDMV.COM

Tax Exempt No.

This sale is pending shipment.  This is not an official invoice and
should not be used for delivery.

Red River Arenas
P.O. Box 632
Coleman, TX 76834

Phone: (325) 625-1900 or (800) 343-1026
Fax: (325) 625-1708

www.RedRiverArenas.com

I UNDERSTAND THAT I AM REQUIRED TO KEEP RECORDS TO VERIFY ELIGIBLITY FOR THE EXEPMTION(S) AND THAT I WILL
BE REQUIRED TO PAY SALES OR USE TAX ON PURCHASES THAT DO NOT QUALIFY FOR THE EXEMPTION(S), IN ADDITION TO
ANY APPLICABLE INTEREST AND PENALTIES. I UNDERSTAND THAT IT IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE TO ISSUE AN EXEMPTION
CERTIFICATE TO THE SELLER FOR TAXABLE ITEMS THAT I KNOW WILL BE USED IN A MANNER THAT DOES NOT QUALIFY
FOR THE EXEMPTIONS FOUND IN TAX CODE SEC. 151.316. THE OFFENSE MAY RANGE FROM A CLASS C MISDEMEANOR TO A
FELONY OF THE SECOND DEGREE.   IN ADDITION, I HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND GUARANTEE & DELIVERY. IF YOU AGREE
PLEASE SIGN BELOW THE TOTAL ON THE RIGHT.

QUALITY GUARANTEE: Based on quality, Red River Arenas (RRA) believes our products to be very competitively priced. Our guarantee to you is
that if our products fail due to faulty workmanship, within one year from date of purchase, RRA will replace the product at no cost "when returned to

the factory at the customer's expense". If the repair is minor, RRA will pay to have someone come to your place and fix the product.  Under no
circumstance will RRA warranty a product that has been used for a purpose not intended, from acts of nature, or from damage done by customer.

DELIVERY: Customer is responsible for unloading product with their equipment. Blackout dates must be given at time or order. RRA must be
notified AT TIME OF DELIVERY of any errors or discrepancies contained in the order, or RRA cannot be responsible for such items. If product

arrives common carrier (ie UPS, FedEx, SAIA) and is damaged: refuse load and full refund including freight will be given.  Product cannot be refused
when shipped LTL or Truckload; acceptance is mandatory. No matter delivery method, if product needs to be returned after delivery has been

completed, it is customers responsibility to pay freight back to factory and original freight charge cannot be refunded. If cancellation of order, or order
return is necessary, the original charge will be refunded less a 15% restocking fee and any additional expenses related to origninal order; RRA will not

give a full refund of original amount.

Item DescriptionQuantity Rate Amount

150 X 250 TEAM ROPER PRO w/ EXTENSIONS
PH12T 6' TALL HEAVY DUTY PANEL-12'79 161.00 12,719.00
PH12T DC 6' TALL HEAVY DUTY PANEL-12' DOUBLE CHAIN5 165.00 825.00
PH16T DC 6' TALL HEAVY DUTY PANEL-16'1 225.00 225.00
PH10T 6' TALL HEAVY DUTY PANEL-10'3 134.00 402.00
GH16 HEAVY DUTY ROD GATE-12'1 194.00 194.00
GH14 HEAVY DUTY ROD GATE-14'1 170.00 170.00
GH12 HEAVY DUTY ROD GATE-12'1 145.00 145.00
GH10 HEAVY DUTY ROD GATE-10'2 125.00 250.00
GH06 HEAVY DUTY ROD GATE-06'3 105.00 315.00
RC100E ROPING CHUTE EXTENSION  ***4 800.00 3,200.00
LSECTION 1/2 45* L SECTION FOR EXTENSIONS  ***3 120.00 360.00
RC200 2018 ROPING CHUTE  ***1 2,250.00 2,250.00
BOXES HEAD/HEEL BOXES- SET1 1,200.00 1,200.00
SC200 NEW STRIPPING CHUTE ***1 750.00 750.00

PH12T 6' TALL HEAVY DUTY PANEL-12'20 161.00 3,220.00
WH06-12T 6' TALL COMBO/PANEL HEAVY DUTY-12'2 435.00 870.00

BUSTER 2.0 2018 ARENA BUSTER/GROOMER1 3,750.00 3,750.00

RRFT RED RIVER FREIGHT 1,100.00 1,100.00

__________________________...

$31,945.00

$31,945.00

$0.00

EXHIBIT D
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Page 1 of 21
Primary Account: 
Beginning July 1, 2019 - Ending July 31, 2019 31

46 " 5 0 "  STATE DMV, L . L . C .  
653 UTAH AVE 
STE B 
LAS CRUCES NM 88001

Contacting Us
Available by phone 24/7

Phone 1-800-266-7277

Online bbvausa.com

Write BBVA 
Customer Service 
P.O. Box 10566 
Birmingham, AL 35296

Summary of Accounts
Deposit Accounts/ Other Products

Ending balance Ending balance 
Account Account number last statement this statement
BUSINESS PREMIUM CHECKING

Total Deposit Accounts

EXHIBIT E
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Page 2 of 21
Primary Account:
Beginning July 1, 2019 - Ending July 31, 2019 31

BUSINESS PREMIUM CHECKING
Account Number:  - "50" STATE DMV, L L.C.

Activity Summary Interest Summary
Interest paid this statement periodBeginning Balance on 7/1/19
Interest earned this statement period

Deposits/Credits + Interest paid this year
Withdrawals/Debits - Average collected balance

Annual percentage yield earnedEnding Balance on 7/31/19

Transaction History
Check/ Deposits/ Withdrawals/ End of Day 

Date * Serial # Description Credits Debits Balance

7/1
7/1  

7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1
7/1   

7/1
7/1
7/2
7/2
7/2
7/2
7/2
7/2
7/2

EXHIBIT E

MUR798100101



EXHIBIT E

MUR798100102



Page 4 of 21
Primary Account:
Beginning July 1, 2019 - Ending July 31, 2019 31

Check/ Deposits/ Withdrawals/ End of Day 
Date * Serial # Description Credits Debits Balance

7/5
7/5
7/5
7/5
7/5
7/5
7/5
7/5  

 
7/5
7/5
7/8  
7/8
7/8
7/8
7/8
7/8
7/8
7/8
7/8
7/8
7/8
7/8
7/8
7/8
7/8
7/8
7/8
7/8
7/9  

7/9   

7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9

EXHIBIT E
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Page 5 of 21
Primary Account:
Beginning July 1, 2019 - Ending July 31, 2019 31

Check/ Deposits/ Withdrawals/ End of Day 
Date * Serial # Description Credits Debits Balance

7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/9
7/10   

7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/10
7/11  

7/11
7/11
7/11
7/11
7/11

EXHIBIT E
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Page 6 of 21
Primary Account:
Beginning July 1, 2019 - Ending July 31, 2019 31

Check/ Deposits/ Withdrawals/ End of Day 
Date * Serial # Description Credits Debits Balance

7/11
7/11
7/11
7/11
7/11
7/11
7/11
7/11
7/11
7/11
7/11
7/11
7/11
7/11
7/11
7/11  

7/11
7/11
7/11
7/11
7/12  

 

7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
7/12
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Page 15 of 21
Primary Account:
Beginning July 1, 2019 - Ending July 31, 2019 31

Check/ Deposits/ Withdrawals/ End of Day 
Date * Serial # Description Credits Debits Balance

7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31
7/31  

 
7/31  

7/31

Ending Balance on 7/31

Totals 

Please note, certain fees and charges posted to your account may relate to services and/or activity from the prior statement cycle
* The Date provided is the business day that the transaction is processed

Summary of Checks
Checks listed are also displayed in the preceding Transaction History
Date Check # Amount Date Check # Amount Date Check # Amount
7/11 7/9 7/15

7/15 7/24 7/10

7/15 7/10 7/10

7/9 7/5 7/9

7/15 7/17 7/31

7/15 7/15 7/9

EXHIBIT E
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Page 20 of 21
Primary Account:
Beginning July 1, 2019 - Ending July 31, 2019 31

Statement Period Rates
Effective July 1, 2019 
Balance Rate

zero to $9,999.99 0.010%
$10,000.00 to $24,999.99 0.010%
$25,000.00 to $74,999.99 0.010%
$75,000.00 to Over 0.050%

EXHIBIT E
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Page 21 of 21
Primary Account:
Beginning July 1, 2019 - Ending July 31, 2019 31

Change of AddressHow to Balance Your Account
Please call us at the telephone number listed on the front of this 

Step 1 • Enter all checks, deposits, and other automated teller statement to tell us about a change of address
card (ATM) transactions in your register.

Electronic Transfers (for consumer accounts only)• Record all automated deductions, debit card 
In case of errors or questions about your Electronic Transfers, write to transactions and electronic bill payments.
BBVA, Operations Compliance Support, P O  Box 10566, • Record and deduct service charges, check printing Birmingham, AL 35296  Or simply call your local customer service charges, or other bank fees. number printed on the front of this statement  Call or write as soon as 

• If you have an interest bearing account, add any you can, if you think your statement or receipt is wrong or if you need 
interest earned shown on this statement. more information about a transfer on the statement or receipt  We 

Step 2 • If applicable, sort checks in numerical order and mark must hear from you no later than 60 days after we sent the first 
statement on which the error or problem appearedin your register each check or other transaction that is 

listed on this statement.
• Tell us your name and account number (if any)Step 3 • List any deposits or credits your have made that do not • Describe the error or the transfer you are unsure about, and explain as clearly as you canappear on this statement (see space provided below). why you believe it is an error or why you need more informationStep 4 • List any checks you have written, debit card • Tell us the dollar amount of the suspected error

transactions, electronic payments and other 
deductions that do not appear on this statement (see We will investigate your complaint and will correct any error promptly  If we take more than 10 
space provided below). business days (20 on claims on accounts opened less than 30 calendar days) to do this, we will 

credit your account for the amount you think is in error, so that you will have the use of the 
money during the time it takes us to complete our investigation

*For Non-Consumer Account customers, please refer to your current Non-Consumer Account Date/Description Amount
Agreement for details regarding Electronic Fund Transfers

|
Overdraft Protection
Calculation of Interest Charge and Balance Subject to Interest Rate The interest charge is |
computed using your annual percentage rate divided by 365 or, in the case of a leap year, 366, 

| which gives you the “Applicable Rate ” Although we calculate the interest charge by applying the 
Applicable Rate to each daily balance, the interest charge can also be calculated by multiplying | the Applicable Rate by the “average daily balance”(Balance Subject to Interest Rate) shown on 
this statement, then multiplying that sum by the number of days in the billing cycle  To get the |
“Balance Subject to Interest Rate” shown on this statement we take the beginning balance of 

Step 3 Total your account less any unpaid finance charges each day, add any new advances or debits, and $ |
subtract any payments or credits  This gives us the daily balance  Then we add all the daily 
balances for the billing cycle and divide by the number of days in the billing cycle  This give us 
the “average daily balance” shown on the statement as “Balance Subject to Interest Rate”  

Date/Description Check # Amount Payments  Payments to your overdraft protection loan account made through our tellers or 
deposited at our automated teller machines (ATM s) Monday through Friday before the posted | cut-off time will be posted to your account on the date they are accepted  Otherwise, they will be 
posted on the next business day  Payments made through our ATM s via a funds transfer will be | posted on the date they are received or on the next business day if made after 6pm CT (6pm MT 
for Arizona accounts and 6pm PT for California accounts) Monday through Friday or anytime |
Saturday, Sunday or bank holidays  BBVA business days are Monday through Friday, excluding 

| holidays

| In Case of Errors or Questions About Your Statement (Overdraft Protection Only)
If you think your statement is wrong, or if you need more information about a transaction on your Step 4 Total $ | statement, write your issue on a separate document and send it to Bankcard Center, P O  Box 

2210, Decatur, AL 35699-0001  Telephone inquires may be made by calling your local BBVA 
branch listed on the front of this statement to speak with a Customer Service Representative  Balancing Your Register to this Statement
Please note: a telephone inquiry will not preserve your rights under federal law  We must hear 

Step 5 •Enter the "current balance" shown on this from you no later than sixty (60) days after we sent you the first statement on which the error or 
statement | problem appeared

•Add total from Step 3 | · Tell us your name and account number (if any)
· Describe the error or the transfer you are unsure about, and explain as clearly as you can•Subtotal | why you believe it is an error or what you need more information
· Tell us the dollar amount of the suspected error•Subtract total from Step 4 |

You can stop the automatic deduction of the Minimum Payment from you checking account if •This balance should equal your register 
you think your statement is wrong  To stop the payment, your letter must reach us three (3) balance |
business days before the automatic deduction is scheduled to occur

If it does not agree, see steps below $ |
Reporting Other Problems

If your account does not balance, review the following: Please review your statement carefully  It is essential that any account errors or any improper 
· Check all your addition and subtraction above in your register transactions on your account be reported to us as soon as reasonably possible  If you fail to 
· Make sure you remembered to subtract service charges listed on notify us of any suspected problems, errors or unauthorized transactions within the time periods 

this statement and add any interest earned to your register specified in the deposit account agreement, we are not liable to you for any loss related to the 
· Amounts of deposits and withdrawals on this statement should problem, error or unauthorized transaction

match your register entries
· If you have questions or need assistance, please refer to the phone BBVA and BBVA Compass are trade names of BBVA USA, a member of the BBVA Group  

number on the front of this statement BBVA USA, Member FDIC

EXHIBIT E
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Account: 0 Date: 8/30/2019 

To whom it may concern: 

Moongate V✓ater Co. will be the water provider to the property of Teeter Jay, LLC, 

located at 7655-1 Rabbit Run when all line extensions and/or meter charges are paid in 
full. 

Moongate Water Co. Inc. is a licensed public utility the water service that we provide is 

in accordance with the rules and regulations of the New Mexico Public Regulatory 

Commission. We collect many water samples from throughout the distribution system. 

These samples are sent to the lab for analysis and the results returned to the State of 

New Mexico Environment Depaiiment as required by law. 

Patricia Gariano, Secretary 

575-382-7001

P.O. Box 243 : Organ: New Mexico 88052 

EXHIBIT F
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,----

TERMS: 

Attention: 

EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY 

PO BOX 982 

EL PASO, TX 79960 

Omar Carrera 

Teeter Jay, LLC 

1300 W. Hadley

Las Cruces, NM 88005 

MATERIAL( 

DN047324 NEW OH LINE EXTENSION TO SERVE MC 

CAFC - Cash Advance for Construction {I 

PLEASE DETACH AND RETURN THE BOTTOM PORTION WITH YOUR REMITTANCE 

TX Sales Tax 

TOTALDUE 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

MISCELLANEOUS 

DATE 

Oct 02, 2019 

ACCOUNT NUMBER 

 

REFERENCE NUMBER 

DN047324 

FERC NUMBER 

PO NUMBER 

AMOUNT 

$11,949.58 

$9,437.02 

$0.00 

$9,437.02 

EXHIBIT G
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El Paso Electric 

P.O. Box 982 

El Paso, Texas 

79960-0982 

(915) 543-5711

October 31, 2019 

Teeter Jay, LLC 
5033 Northwind Road 
Las Cruces, New Mexico 88007 

Dear Mr. Skaggs: 

LETTER OF AGREEMENT DATED 

SEPTEMBER 10, 2019 

We appreciate the opportunity to provide you with electric service. 

The construction completion date of facilities necessary to serve a mobile home residence 
located at 7655 Rabbit Run Rd. was October 16, 2019. This date begins the four (4) year term 
of your agreement. 

If you have any questions, please contact me at (575) 523-3546. 

'o Ann Franco 

ntracts Representative 

EXHIBIT H
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SCHEDULE A  (FEC Form 3)

ITEMIZED RECEIPTS

Any information copied from such Reports and Statements may not be sold or used by any person for the purpose of soliciting contributions 
or for commercial purposes, other than using the name and address of any political committee to solicit contributions from such committee.

NAME OF COMMITTEE (In Full)

  , , .

  , , .SUBTOTAL of Receipts This Page (optional).............................................................................

TOTAL This Period (last page this line number only)................................................................ 	 


Full Name (Last, First, Middle Initial)

Mailing Address

City State Zip Code	

Receipt For: 

 Primary General

Other (specify)

A.

Election Cycle-to-Date


Date of Receipt

Name of Employer Occupation

   , , .

FEC ID number of contributing
federal political committee. C

Full Name (Last, First, Middle Initial)

Mailing Address

City State Zip Code	

Receipt For: 

 Primary General

Other (specify)

B.

Election Cycle-to-Date


Date of Receipt

Name of Employer Occupation

   , , .

FEC ID number of contributing
federal political committee. C

Full Name (Last, First, Middle Initial)

Mailing Address

City State Zip Code	

Receipt For: 

 Primary General

Other (specify)

C.

Election Cycle-to-Date


Date of Receipt

Name of Employer Occupation

   , , .

FEC ID number of contributing
federal political committee. C

PAGE  OFFOR LINE NUMBER: 
(check only one)Use separate schedule(s) 

for each category of the  
Detailed Summary Page

 11a  11b  11c  11d

 12  13b 13a  14  15

 M M / D D / Y Y Y Y

 M M / D D / Y Y Y Y

 M M / D D / Y Y Y Y

Amount of Each Receipt this Period

   , , .

Amount of Each Receipt this Period

   , , .

Amount of Each Receipt this Period

   , , .

FEC Schedule A (Form 3) (Revised 05/2016)

Memo Item

Memo Item

Memo Item

Image# 202105209447319976

91 170

✘

MARK MOORES FOR CONGRESS

SKAGGS, JOSEPH, , ,
1300 WEST HADLEY AVENUE

04 03 2021

LAS CRUCES NM
Transaction ID : SA11AI.8242

88005

2900.00

HYDROTECH MANAGER

2021
EARMARKED THROUGH WINRED [SA11A1.4295] -
SPECIAL GENERAL

✘
Other

2900.00

SKAGGS, KIMBERLY, , ,
5033 NORTHWIND RD

04 03 2021

LAS CRUCES NM 88007
Transaction ID : SA11AI.8240

2900.00

50 STATE MANAGER

2021

✘
Other

EARMARKED THROUGH WINRED [SA11A1.4295] -
SPECIAL GENERAL

2900.00

SMILES BY DESIGN
5110 MASTHEAD ST NE SUITE A

05 10 2021

ALBUQUERQUE NM 87109
Transaction ID : SA11AI.8296

500.00

2021

✘
Other

PERMISSIBLE FUNDS: SEE MEMO -SPECIAL
GENERAL500.00

6300.00

EXHIBIT I
MUR798100124
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7/5/22, 12:49 PM Schedule A for ALL Line #'s

https://docquery.fec.gov/cgi-bin/forms/C00779314/1524402/sa/ALL 1/1

SCHEDULE A

ITEMIZED RECEIPTS 
All Listed Line Numbers

Committee: THE FREEDOM FORWARD FUND
Contributor's
Name

Contributor's
Address Employer/Occupation Memo/Description Memo Text Date Amount

($)
Aggregate
($) Limits

Ben Spencer

4901 Rio
Grande Lane



Los Ranchos,
New Mexico
87107

Titan Development
/
Real Estate Developer Receipt 05/17/2021 10000.00 10000.00

Teeter Jay,
LLC

18 Prairie
Trail



Tularosa, New
Mexico 88352

Receipt 05/03/2021 50000.00 50000.00

Teeter Jay,
LLC

18 Prairie
Trail



Tularosa, New
Mexico 88352

Receipt 05/17/2021 50000.00 100000.00

Total Donation Amount (Non-Memo) $110000

Total Memo Amount $0

Number of Transactions (Non-Memo) 3

Number of Transactions (Memo) 0
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EXHIBIT J

MUR798100125
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Lucinda H. Luetkemeyer George R. Lewis 
Direct Dial: (816) 285-3057   Direct Dial: (816) 890-6773 
Fax: (816) 817-0780  Fax: (816) 817-0863 
lluetkemeyer@gravesgarrett.com  glewis@gravesgarrett.com 

July 12, 2022 

Via U.S. Mail and Electronic Mail to mike@mccauleyassociatespc.com 
McCauley & Associates P.C. 
Attn: Mike Shared, C.P.A. 
122 C Street NW #540 
Washington, D.C. 20001 

Re: Teeter Jay, LLC, Kimberly A. Skaggs, Joseph R. Skaggs, Terryl Jay Skaggs (Matter 
Number MUR 7981) 

Dear Mr. Shared: 

On July 12, 2021, you reported to the FEC that on May 3 and May 17, 2021, Teeter Jay, LLC 
made contributions totaling $100,000 to Freedom Forward Fund, an Independent Expenditure Committee. 

Teeter Jay, LLC is a partnership. Kimberly A. Skaggs is the manager and partnership 
representative, and the partners have agreed to attribute the contributions to Ms. Skaggs. 50 State DMV, 
LLC provides the cash flow for Teeter Jay, LLC and at the time of the contribution was a single member 
LLC, with Ms. Skaggs as the sole member. 

On behalf of our clients Teeter Jay LLC and Ms. Skaggs, these contributions should be attributed 
to Ms. Skaggs, effective the date of the contributions, May 3, and May 17, 2021. This clarification is 
consistent with the following federal regulations governing campaign contributions. 11 C.F.R. § 
110.1(e)(2);11 C.F.R. § 110.1(g)(4). 

Please have Freedom Forward Fund make the requested changes on its Federal Election 
Commission disclosures to reflect the true source of the contribution as Ms. Skaggs. If you have any 
questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Very truly yours, 

Lucinda Luetkemeyer 
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